

ACCET TECHNICAL REPORT 2025

An Overview of Evolving Global and Regional Security Threats:

Insights, Analysis, and Strategic Directions





Advancing Security Through Innovation and Expertise

The American Center for Combating Extremism and Terrorism (ACCET) is a U.S.-based non-profit organization dedicated to advancing global security through innovative research, strategic partnerships, and evidence-based solutions. ACCET leverages the expertise of senior diplomats, former politicians, seasoned civil servants, and international experts to address the complex challenges posed by violent extremism, terrorism, and emerging security threats.

With a proven track record spanning dozens of countries across Europe, Eurasia, and Africa, ACCET employs a comprehensive, 360-degree approach to security challenges. Our work encompasses advancing international strategies, strengthening global responses, conducting cutting-edge research, fostering youth resilience, countering extremist ideologies, promoting rehabilitation and reintegration, and fortifying digital defenses.

Through close collaboration with governments, security agencies, civil society organizations, and communities, ACCET ensures that its efforts create sustainable, locally-driven solutions that contribute to a safer, more secure world for all.

For more information visit www.accetglobal.com

Copyright © 2025 American Center for Combating Extremism and Terrorism (ACCET) All rights reserved.

For additional information contact:

Dr. Dwaine Lee, Vice President for Global Programs dlee@americanctr.org

americanctr.org accetglobal.com



ACCET AMERICAN CENTER COMBATING EXTREMISM & TERRORISM



ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report presents a comprehensive analysis of evolving global and regional security threats, examining the complex interplay between traditional security challenges and emerging threats that are reshaping the international security landscape. Drawing upon extensive research and data from leading security institutions, government agencies, and academic sources, the report provides an in-depth examination of seven critical global security domains: cybersecurity, hybrid warfare, emerging weapons technologies, supply chain vulnerabilities, biosecurity, space security, and climate change impacts on global security.

The analysis is structured in two main parts. The first section offers a detailed exploration of these global security threats, examining their current manifestations, emerging trends, and potential future trajectories. Each domain is analyzed through the lens of recent developments, technological advances, and their implications for international security. The second section provides a regional analysis, examining how these global threats manifest differently across six major world regions: Asia-Pacific, Middle East, Europe, Africa, the Americas, and South Asia. This regional approach allows for a nuanced understanding of how global security challenges interact with local contexts and existing regional dynamics.

Throughout the report, real-world examples, statistical data, and case studies are used to illustrate the complex nature of contemporary security challenges and their interconnected impacts. The analysis draws particular attention to the ways in which technological advancement, climate change, and geopolitical shifts are creating new vulnerabilities while transforming traditional security paradigms. By examining both global trends and regional variations, this report aims to provide policymakers, security professionals, and other stakeholders with a comprehensive understanding of the current security landscape and its likely evolution in the coming years. The insights and analysis presented here are intended to inform strategic planning, policy development, and international cooperation efforts aimed at addressing these multifaceted security challenges.



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY2
I. COMPREHENSIVE EXPLORATION OF GLOBAL SECURITY THREAT
1. Cybersecurity: The Evolution of Digital Threats
2. Hybrid Warfare: New Frontiers in Global Conflict
3. Emerging Weapons: Reshaping Modern Combat
4. SUPPLY CHAIN SECURITY: GLOBAL ECONOMIC VULNERABILITIES
5. BIOSECURITY: FROM PANDEMICS TO BIOTERRORISM
6. Space Security: The Next Battlefield
7. CLIMATE CHANGE: THE SECURITY MULTIPLIER
II. REGIONAL SECURITY THREAT DYNAMICS: AN OVERVIEW OF CRITICAL VULNERABILITIES24
ASIA-PACIFIC: CONVERGING SECURITY CHALLENGES
MIDDLE EAST: A REGION AT THE CROSSROADS
EUROPE: CONFRONTING NEW SECURITY PARADIGMS
AFRICA: CONVERGING CRISES AND EMERGING CHALLENGES
AMERICAS: NEW FRONTIERS IN HEMISPHERIC SECURITY
South Asia: Legacy Conflicts and Emerging Threats

CONCLUSION	

REFERENCES:

An Overview of Evolving Global and Regional Security Threats:

Insights, Analysis, and Strategic Directions

Executive Summary

The global security landscape in 2025 continues to evolve at an unprecedented pace, characterized by the convergence of technological threats, environmental challenges, and geopolitical instabilities. The vear has witnessed significant past developments that have fundamentally altered regional power dynamics, from the dramatic fall of the Assad regime in Syria to the ongoing humanitarian crisis in Gaza. These events, coupled with persistent technological and environmental challenges, underscore the need for adaptive security strategies and enhanced international cooperation.

Cybersecurity remains one of the most pressing challenges, with over two-thirds of global organizations experiencing significant attacks in the past year. The sophistication of these threats has increased dramatically, with artificial intelligence-enabled attacks becoming commonplace and "breakout times" - the period between initial breach and lateral movement - now averaging less than one hour. The emergence of quantumresistant encryption has sparked a new arms race in cybersecurity, as organizations scramble to protect their systems against both current and future threats.

The energy security landscape has transformed significantly, particularly in

Europe, where the transition to renewable sources has accelerated despite economic pressures. However, this shift has created new vulnerabilities in power grid systems and critical infrastructure. Simultaneously, climate-related security challenges have intensified, with unprecedented weather events disrupting global supply chains and triggering large-scale population movements. The past year has seen recordbreaking temperatures across multiple continents, leading to agricultural failures and exacerbating food security concerns in vulnerable regions.

In the Middle East, the political landscape has been reshaped by recent developments. The sudden collapse of the Assad regime has created new dynamics in Syria, while the continuing conflict in Gaza has broader implications for regional stability. These situations have highlighted the increasing complexity of modern conflicts, where conventional warfare intersects with cyber operations, information warfare, and humanitarian challenges.

The militarization of space has accelerated, with multiple nations deploying sophisticated satellite networks and antisatellite capabilities. This has coincided with growing concerns about space debris and the security of space-based infrastructure critical to global communications and navigation systems. Meanwhile, biosecurity threats have evolved beyond traditional concerns, as advances in synthetic biology and the lingering impacts of recent pandemics continue to challenge global health security frameworks.



These developments demand a fundamental reassessment of traditional security paradigms. The interconnected nature of modern threats requires integrated responses that span technological, diplomatic, and humanitarian domains. As we navigate this complex security landscape, robust international the need for cooperation and innovative solutions has never been more critical.

Comprehensive Exploration of Global Security Threats

In an era of unprecedented technological advancement and global interconnectivity, the world faces a complex web of security challenges that transcend traditional boundaries and demand innovative solutions. The convergence of digital vulnerabilities, environmental pressures, and geopolitical tensions has created a security landscape where threats are increasingly interdependent and mutually reinforcing. As organizations and nations grapple with sophisticated cyber attacks, supply chain disruptions, and climate-driven instabilities, the need for a coordinated, multi-faceted approach to global security has never been more critical.

This comprehensive analysis examines the evolving nature of global threats, from the surge in ransomware attacks and cloud vulnerabilities to the mounting pressures of climate change and food insecurity. By exploring the intersections between technological, environmental, and geopolitical challenges, we illuminate the complex dynamics that shape contemporary security risks and outline potential pathways for building resilience in an increasingly volatile world. The following sections delve into specific threat vectors, their impacts, and the emerging strategies needed to address them effectively while highlighting the crucial role of international cooperation and adaptive governance in securing our collective future.

Cybersecurity: The Evolution of Digital Threats

State-sponsored hackers and criminal organizations increasingly target critical infrastructure, financial systems, and private corporations through sophisticated cyberattacks. Ransomware attacks on healthcare and energy sectors have become commonplace, while artificial intelligence is being weaponized for phishing campaigns, deepfake technology, and automated hacking (CIS, 2022).

The compromise of third-party vendors allows hackers indirect access to sensitive

systems, as seen in cases like the SolarWinds breach (Mandiant, 2020). Cybersecurity



threats are evolving in sophistication, frequency, and impact, targeting individuals, organizations, and governments worldwide.

Below is a narrative overview of key statistics and real-world examples highlighting the growing challenges in this domain. In 2023, 66% of organizations globally experienced ransomware attacks, up significantly from previous years (Cybersecurity Ventures, 2023). These attacks disrupt operations, encrypting critical data until a ransom is paid. The Colonial Pipeline attack (2021) crippled fuel supply across the U.S. East Coast, highlighting vulnerabilities in critical (U.S. infrastructure Department of Homeland Security, 2021). The company paid a ransom of \$4.4 million to regain control. In 2023, a ransomware attack targeted the UK's National Health Service (NHS), delaying patient care and exposing systemic weaknesses (UK NHS, 2023). Credential phishing and abuse of stolen identities were responsible for 75% of intrusions successful cyber in 2023 (XenoCyber, 2023).

The market for stolen credentials grew by 20%, fueling these attacks (Cybersecurity Ventures, 2023). The SolarWinds breach (2020) showcased how attackers leveraged compromised credentials to infiltrate multiple U.S. government agencies and corporations (Mandiant, 2020). Cloud service providers are increasingly targeted; for instance, a 2023 breach exploited gaps in identity management, exposing sensitive customer data (Gartner. 2023). As organizations migrate to the cloud, attacks

targeting cloud environments surged by 75% in 2023 (IBM Security, 2023). These often involve exploiting misconfigurations and inadequate security measures. A major cloud provider suffered data leaks due to improperly secured databases, affecting millions of users globally in 2022 (Cyber Risk Analytics, 2023). In 2023, a cyberattack on a multinational retail company's cloud systems led to a compromise of payment data across its international network (BBC News, 2023). Malware attacks on IoT devices increased by a staggering 400% in 2023, with the manufacturing and healthcare industries being the primary targets (Palo Alto Networks, 2023). In a 2022 attack, hackers gained control of smart devices in a hospital, disrupting patient monitoring systems and critical medical devices (HealthITSecurity, 2022). Industrial IoT systems in factories have been increasingly targeted, with attackers exploiting vulnerabilities to halt production lines (XenoCyber, 2023). Ninetyeight percent of organizations globally are connected to third-party vendors that experienced a breach in the last two years Institute, 2023). Smaller (Ponemon organizations are disproportionately affected due to weaker cyber defenses. In 2023, a ransomware attack on a small supplier disrupted operations for a global automotive manufacturer, exposing the cascading effects of third-party vulnerabilities (CISA, 2023).

The average cost of a data breach reached \$4.45 million in 2023, with organizations taking an average of 287 days to identify and contain breaches (IBM Security, 2023). The Marriott International breach (2018-2022) resulted in massive data loss affecting 500 million customers, costing the company hundreds of millions in fines and reputation damage (U.S. Federal Trade Commission, 2022).

The average cost of a data breach reached \$4.45 million in 2023, with organizations taking an average of 287 days to identify and contain breaches (IBM Security, 2023).

Financial institutions have increasingly faced long-term damage due to breaches that expose sensitive customer and transactional data. State-sponsored cyberattacks have become a significant concern, with China, Russia, and North Korea being key actors (Hathaway et al., 2022). These attacks often target critical infrastructure and defense systems. The NotPetya attack (2017), widely attributed to Russia, caused global economic losses of over \$10 billion by crippling systems across various sectors (Baker, 2018). In 2023, state-sponsored attacks targeted election systems in emerging democracies, raising concerns about electoral integrity (Walsh, 2023).

Cybersecurity threats are increasingly diverse, targeting systems ranging from individual devices to critical infrastructure. Ransomware, identity theft. IoT vulnerabilities, and state-sponsored attacks dominate the landscape. Addressing these challenges requires enhanced resilience through investment in cybersecurity tools, employee training, and international cooperation (Johnson & 2022). Lee,

Hybrid Warfare: New Frontiers in Global Conflict

In today's global landscape, the dynamics of international relations are characterized by increasing geopolitical tensions and the emergence of hybrid warfare strategies¹. Geopolitical tensions often arise from competing national interests, resource

disputes, historical grievances, and shifts in power (Bremmer, 2021). These tensions are amplified by the accessibility and integration of hybrid warfare, a blend of conventional military tactics with cyber warfare, disinformation, economic coercion, and

¹ Hybrid Warfare: The combination of cyberattacks, disinformation campaigns, and economic manipulation is

becoming a common strategy to destabilize adversaries (Friedman, 2021).

political subversion (Hoffman, 2023). This narrative explores the intertwining of geopolitical tensions with hybrid warfare, supported by statistical indicators of global conflict trends. Geopolitical tensions are driven by factors such as territorial disputes, ideological differences, economic competition, and the pursuit of strategic dominance (Global Conflict Tracker, 2023). Regions like Eastern Europe, the Asia-Pacific, and the Middle East are often hotspots due to their strategic importance and complex histories. For instance, the South China Sea sees frequent tensions due to territorial claims by multiple countries, impacting international trade routes and regional security (SIPRI, 2022). Statistics from bodies like the Global Conflict Tracker indicate a steady increase in state-led confrontations and sanctions as tools of geopolitical influence. According to recent reports, there were over 25 major international territorial disputes as of 2023, highlighting the scale of geopolitical rivalries (Council on Foreign Relations, 2023).

Hybrid warfare represents a shift from traditional military confrontations to a more complex and covert spectrum of warfare. It includes activities such as cyberattacks on critical infrastructure, dissemination of fake news to influence public opinion, and using mercenaries to achieve political goals without direct state involvement (Kellen, 2022). By blurring the lines between war and peace, hybrid warfare enables state and non-state actors to achieve strategic objectives without triggering full-scale military responses (Hoffman, 2023). A 2022 report from the Center for Strategic and International Studies noted a 20% increase in cyberattacks globally, with 40% targeting government or critical infrastructure sectors (CSIS, 2022). The rise in these assaults underscores the escalating utilization of cyber tactics as part of hybrid strategies.

Global cybercrime costs are expected to reach \$10.5 trillion annually by 2025, reflecting the substantial impact of cyber operations within hybrid warfare tactics (Cybersecurity Ventures, 2023).

The crisis in Ukraine is a quintessential example of hybrid warfare within a geopolitical conflict. Since 2014, Russia's annexation of Crimea and its support for separatists in Eastern Ukraine have involved cyberattacks, disinformation campaigns, and the use of irregular troops (Galeotti, 2023). This mix of conventional and unconventional tactics exemplifies hybrid warfare's role in modern conflict, challenging conventional defense mechanisms. Surveys conducted by the European Council on Foreign Relations show that more than 70% of European respondents view Russia's actions in Ukraine as a critical threat, underscoring the international community's recognition of hybrid warfare strategies (ECFR, 2022).

Organized social media manipulation campaigns are taking place in 81 countries and aim to influence electoral outcomes, shape public opinion, and destablizie societies. (Oxford Internet Institute, 2022)

Geopolitical tensions and hybrid warfare are reshaping the modern conflict environment. As nations jostle for power, influence, and security, the integrated approach of using both political and unconventional military tactics will likely intensify (Mearsheimer, 2022). Understanding these dynamics continuous monitoring requires of geopolitical developments and investment in counter-hybrid warfare capabilities. The trend towards hybrid engagement necessitates adaptable policies and collaborative international efforts to address the multifaceted challenges of today's geopolitical and security landscape.

Cybersecurity Ventures reported that global cybercrime costs are expected to reach \$10.5 trillion annually by 2025, reflecting the substantial impact of cyber operations

within hybrid warfare tactics (Cybersecurity Ventures, 2023). A significant 2023 survey by CyberEdge Group indicated that 85% of organizations experienced a successful cyberattack, which aligns with increased geopolitical and hybrid warfare activities where nation-states exploit cyber vulnerabilities (CyberEdge Group, 2023). The Oxford Internet Institute found in its 2022 report that organized social media manipulation campaigns are taking place in 81 countries. These campaigns are often state-sponsored and aim to influence electoral outcomes, shape public opinion, and destabilize societies (Oxford Internet Institute, 2022).

In the 2020 U.S. Presidential election, Russian operatives were reported to have used social media platforms like Facebook and Twitter to spread disinformation, which included creating fake news stories to sow discord and undermine democratic processes (Mueller Report, 2019). China's use of economic leverage is an example of hybrid tactics in geopolitical conflicts. The Australian Foreign Affairs journal noted that following Australia's call for an investigation into the origins of COVID-19, China imposed tariffs on Australian goods like barley and wine, illustrating economic coercion as a tool within hybrid warfare (Australian Foreign Affairs, 2021). A 2022 report by the European Centre for International Political Economy highlighted that China's economic sanctions cost the European Union nearly €2.4 billion in exports in a single year, affecting industries like automotive and technology (European Centre for International Political Economy, 2022).

The Syrian Civil War serves as a significant example where hybrid warfare is at play. Multiple state and non-state actors, including Russia, the United States, Iran, and Turkey, have used a mix of conventional forces, proxy groups, and cyber operations to pursue their geopolitical interests (Zapata, 2022). The United Nations Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA) reported that, as of 2023, there have

been over 13.4 million displacements within Syria since the conflict began, demonstrating the massive humanitarian impact of such hybrid conflicts (OCHA, 2023).

HYBRID WARFARE

The presence of private military companies (PMCs) like the Wagner Group, a Russian

paramilitary organization, in conflicts in Africa and the Middle East illustrates another facet of hybrid warfare. Their involvement provides plausible deniability states, complicating international for responses to these conflicts (Peterson, from the Stockholm 2021). Data International Peace Research Institute (SIPRI) suggests an increased use of PMCs in conflict zones, highlighting a trend where states leverage these forces to further their



American Center for Combating Extremism and Terrorism (ACCET) An Overview of Evolving Global and Regional Security Threats

geopolitical aims without direct military engagement (SIPRI, 2022).

These statistics and examples underscore the complex and evolving nature of geopolitical tensions and hybrid warfare. As global powers continue to leverage hybrid tactics, understanding these elements will be crucial for effective international policy and security frameworks.

Emerging Weapons: Reshaping Modern Combat

The landscape of warfare is undergoing a profound transformation driven by rapid technological advancements. As nations

strive for dominance, emerging weapons systems are reshaping combat strategies and enabling new forms of engagement (Clark, 2022). This narrative explores how these advancements, from autonomous systems to cyber capabilities, are not only redefining how wars are fought but also raising ethical, strategic, and security dilemmas on a global scale (Hoffman, 2023).

One of the most significant developments in modern warfare is the advent of autonomous weapons systems (AWS). These systems, capable of engaging targets with little or no human intervention, have sparked intense debate regarding their implications for military ethics and accountability (Lin, 2020). Unmanned aerial vehicles (UAVs) have become а staple in contemporary conflict. The U.S. military has effectively used drones in counterterrorism operations, with reported strikes in countries like Pakistan, Yemen, and Somalia. According to the Bureau of Investigative Journalism, U.S. drone strikes in Pakistan alone resulted in

over 400 civilian casualties in the last decade, raising questions about the collateral damage associated with remote

Modern Warfare Technologies



AUTONOMOUS SYSTEMS: Can operate independently with minimal human control; ideal for surveillance and high-risk missions.



CYBER WEAPONS: Disrupt critical infrastructure and systems through digital networks; bypass traditional defenses



HYPERSONIC WEAPONS: Travel at 5+ times speed of sound (Mach 5); can evade current missile defense systems



DIRECTED ENERGY Precision targeting using concentrated energy beams; minimal cost per engagement

warfare (Bureau of Investigative Journalism, 2023).

The Russian military has developed systems like the Nerekhta, an unmanned ground vehicle designed to support troops in battlefield scenarios (Wright, 2021). As autonomous systems become more prevalent, the potential for lethal robots in combat scenarios poses significant ethical dilemmas. Organizations like the Campaign Stop Killer Robots advocate for to prohibiting fully autonomous weapons, emphasizing the need for human oversight in life-and-death decisions (Campaign to Stop Killer Robots, 2022). In tandem with advancements in physical weaponry, cyber capabilities have emerged as critical tools in modern warfare. Nations are increasingly recognizing the importance of cyber operations as a means to disrupt, sabotage, or exfiltrate valuable information from adversaries (Friedman, 2023).

There has been a 300% increase in state-sponsored cyberattacks against critical infrastructure globally, underscoring the urgency for nations to bolster their cybersecurity frameworks (CISA, 2023). A landmark example of cyber warfare is the Stuxnet virus, reportedly developed by the United States and Israel to target Iran's nuclear program. In 2010, the malicious worm crippled centrifuges at the Natanz facility, showcasing how cyber tools can achieve strategic objectives without conventional military engagement (Lindsay, 2013). This incident marked a turning point, potential highlighting the of cyber capabilities as a weapon of choice in modern conflicts.

As countries race to develop nextgeneration missile systems, hypersonic weapons stand at the forefront of military innovation. These weapons, capable of traveling at speeds exceeding Mach 5, pose significant challenges for existing missile defense systems due to their maneuverability and speed (Kahn, 2022). In recent years, both Russia and China have made substantial strides in hypersonic Russia technology. demonstrated its Avangard hypersonic glide vehicle in 2020, capable of evading traditional missile defense systems (SIPRI. 2021). Simultaneously, China's DF-ZF hypersonic glide vehicle has sparked global concern over the potential for rapid strikes, complicating traditional deterrence strategies (Cohen, 2023).

The U.S. Defense Department has recognized the urgency of keeping pace with these advancements, with a reported increase in funding for hypersonic research from \$2.6 billion in fiscal year 2020 to over \$3 billion in FY2024 (U.S. Department of Defense, 2023). The race for hypersonic capabilities underscores the need for nations to rethink their defense policies and strategies in light of emerging threats (Friedman, 2023).

Another area of technological advancement is the development of laser weapons and directed energy systems. These systems offer the potential for precise targeting and reduced costs per engagement, revolutionizing modern defense (Bell, 2020). Deployed aboard USS Ponce in 2014, the U.S. Navy's Laser Weapons System (LaWS) was designed to disable drones, small boats, and incoming projectiles using high-energy lasers (U.S. Navy, 2014). The system represents a

significant shift in naval warfare, offering a lowcost alternative to traditional missiles, and reducing logistic footprints during extended operations.

Other nations, including Israel and China, are also advancing directed energy programs. The Israeli defense force has utilized laser systems to intercept rocket threats from Gaza, signifying a growing trend toward integrating lasers for air defense (Elbit Systems, 2021). Technological advancements in emerging weapons are fundamentally changing the nature of warfare, introducing capabilities that challenge existing military doctrines and ethical frameworks. As nations navigate this landscape, new the implications of autonomous systems, cyber warfare, hypersonic weapons, and directed energy technologies will shape international relations and security strategies in unprecedented ways (Hoffman, 2023). The interplay between innovation and regulation will define the future of warfare, necessitating robust dialogue on the ethical, strategic, and humanitarian facets of these developments.



Supply Chain Security: Global Economic Vulnerabilities

Economic and supply chain instability has emerged as a critical concern for nations and businesses worldwide, driven by a myriad of factors including geopolitical tensions, natural disasters, pandemics, technological and disruptions (IMF,



2021). These vulnerabilities can have profound impacts on global trade, economic growth, and national security, revealing the intricate interdependencies that define contemporary economies.

This analysis delves into the causes of economic instability and supply chain disruptions, providing tangible examples to illustrate these challenges in the modern era. Rising geopolitical tensions can create an unpredictable economic landscape, prompting nations to impose sanctions, restrict trade, or engage in economic warfare (U.S.-China Economic and Security Review Commission, 2021). For instance, the trade war between the United States and China, which began in 2018, resulted in billions of dollars in tariffs on various goods. The U.S.-China Economic and Security **Review Commission reported that American** consumers faced increased costs, with tariffs affecting over \$500 billion in imports, illustrating how political disputes can directly impact economic stability.

Natural disasters, exacerbated by climate change, pose significant risks to economies worldwide. The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) reported that in 2020, the United States experienced 22 separate weather events with damages costing over \$1 billion each (NOAA, 2021). These disasters disrupt local economies, strain public resources, and lead to long-term socioeconomic challenges, particularly in vulnerable communities (FEMA, 2022).

The COVID-19 pandemic serves as a stark example of how a global health crisis can trigger widespread economic instability. According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the worldwide economy contracted by 3.5% in 2020, marking the worst global recession since the Great Depression (IMF, 2021). The pandemic disrupted labor markets, led to business closures, and caused unprecedented unemployment rates, particularly in sectors like hospitality and travel.

The interconnectedness of global supply chains means that disruptions in one region can ripple through economies worldwide. The COVID-19 pandemic highlighted this vulnerability; for instance, the semiconductor shortage that emerged in 2020 significantly impacted various industries, including automotive and consumer electronics (Boston Consulting Group, 2022). The auto industry faced approximately \$210 billion in lost revenues due to production slowdowns and increased vehicle prices (Boston Consulting Group, 2022). In March 2021, the Ever Given container ship blockage at the Suez Canal exemplified the fragility of global trade routes. This event disrupted approximately \$400 million of trade per hour, emphasizing how singular incidents can halt international shipping and create shortages of goods (Lloyd's List, 2021). A report indicated that roughly 9-12% of global trade is conducted through the Suez Canal, making its stability vital for economic continuity (Lloyd's List, 2021).

Labor shortages post-pandemic have further exacerbated supply chain challenges. The logistics sector has faced significant workforce shortages, impacting the movement of goods. A survey by ManpowerGroup in 2022 revealed that 69% of employers reported difficulty finding qualified workers, leading to delays in delivery times and increased costs for consumers (ManpowerGroup, 2022). These challenges have prompted companies to reevaluate their supply chain strategies, including re-shoring and diversifying suppliers to enhance resilience (KPMG, 2022).

The Ever Given container ship blockage of the Suez Canal disrupted approximately \$400 million of trade per hour (Lloyd's List, 2021)

The pandemic accelerated the transformation of retail, with a significant shift toward e-commerce. According to Statista, global e-commerce sales surged from \$3.3 trillion in 2019 to \$4.28 trillion in 2020 (Statista, 2021). While this growth presents opportunities, it also strains supply chains, requiring companies to invest in warehousing, and logistics, delivery infrastructure to meet heightened consumer demand (McKinsey & Company, 2021). Companies like Amazon have leveraged technology to enhance supply chain efficiency, employing advanced data analytics, automation, and artificial intelligence to optimize processes (Chopra, 2022). For example, Amazon's use of machine learning to predict demand has improved its inventory management, yet such advancements also highlight

disparities, as smaller businesses may struggle to keep pace with these innovations (Chopra, 2022).

Economic and supply chain instability presents a multifaceted challenge that is increasingly relevant in today's interconnected world. The interplay of geopolitical tensions, natural disasters, health crises, and technological changes underscores the vulnerability of economies and supply systems (IMF, 2022). As businesses and governments seek to navigate these challenges, the need for enhanced resilience, diversified supply



chains, and robust risk management strategies becomes paramount. Addressing these vulnerabilities will require collaboration sectors and across borders, emphasizing the importance of adaptability in a rapidly changing global landscape (World Economic Forum, 2021). Understanding and mitigating the risks associated with economic and supply chain instability is essential for achieving sustainable growth and enhancing global security.

Biosecurity: From Pandemics to Bioterrorism

Biosecurity threats encompass a wide range of risks posed by biological agents, including infectious diseases, bioterrorism, and the potential consequences of climate change on public health. These threats can disrupt social systems, economies, and national security (Graham & Wright, 2020). The COVID-19 pandemic has dramatically underscored the paramount importance of robust biosecurity measures and the urgent need for global cooperation to address these vulnerabilities (WHO, 2022). This analysis explores the various dimensions of biosecurity threats, highlighting examples that illustrate their significance in the modern context.

2.8 million infections and 35,000 deaths occur annually in the U.S. due to antibiotic-resistant bacteria (CDC, 2022)

The emergence of infectious diseases represents a significant biosecurity concern. The COVID-19 pandemic serves as a stark reminder of how rapidly a pathogen can spread globally. According to the World Health Organization (WHO), by early 2022, COVID-19 had caused over 6 million deaths worldwide and resulted in vast public health

impacts, economic disruptions, and changes to daily life (WHO, 2022). The pandemic highlighted deficiencies in global health systems, surveillance, and preparedness, prompting calls for enhanced biosecurity frameworks (Graham & Wright, 2020). Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) is an escalating challenge that threatens global health security. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) estimates that 2.8 million infections and 35,000 deaths occur annually in the U.S. due to antibioticresistant bacteria (CDC, 2022). AMR can complicate treatment for common infections and increase healthcare costs, making it a critical area of concern in biosecurity strategies (WHO, 2022).

The intentional release of biological agents for malicious purposes poses a severe threat to national security. Historical examples, such as the anthrax attacks in the United States in 2001, highlight the devastating potential of bioterrorism. Letters containing anthrax spores targeted government officials and media outlets, resulting in five deaths and numerous infections, along with widespread fear and disruption (Cohen, 2002).

Zoonotic diseases, which are transmitted from animals to humans, are increasingly recognized as significant biosecurity threats. The spillover of pathogens such as Ebola, HIV, and SARS-CoV-2 from animal reservoirs to humans illustrates the need for vigilance in monitoring wildlife and livestock health. The World Organisation for Animal Health (OIE) emphasizes the importance of a One Health approach, integrating human, animal, and environmental health to mitigate the risk of zoonotic outbreaks (OIE, 2021). The Nipah virus, first identified in Malaysia in 1998, is an example of a zoonotic disease with severe public health implications. The virus has a high fatality rate and can cause

respiratory illness encephalitis. and **Outbreaks** in Bangladesh and India have health prompted authorities to implement strict surveillance and control measures to prevent further transmission, highlighting the need for robust



biosecurity protocols in managing emerging infectious threats (Hussain, 2020).

Climate change poses indirect but significant biosecurity threats by altering ecosystems and enabling the spread of pathogens (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [IPCC], 2022). Changes in climate can expand the range of vectors such as mosquitoes, leading to increased cases of diseases like malaria, dengue fever, and Zika virus. The European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control (ECDC) has warned that warmer temperatures can extend

Addressing biosecurity threats requires coordinated global efforts and preparedness at national and international levels. The World Health Organization (WHO), in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, has emphasized the importance of strengthening health global security advocating for improved systems, surveillance, rapid response capabilities, and vaccine research and distribution to combat emerging infectious diseases (WHO, 2021). The International Health Regulations (IHR) outline frameworks for member states to

mosquito breeding seasons, heightening the risk of outbreaks in previously unaffected

regions (ECDC, 2023). Climate change can

also impact food production, leading to food

scarcity and malnutrition, which in turn can compromise immune systems and increase

susceptibility to infectious diseases. The

Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

threaten food security, particularly in

patterns

notes that shifting weather

vulnerable populations (FAO, 2022).

report public health emergencies and collaborate on containment strategies (WHO, 2021). Following the lessons from COVID-19, there is growing momentum to

enhance these regulations to better prepare for future pandemics and biosecurity risks (WHO, 2022).

Biosecurity threats present some of the most pressing challenges to global health and security in the 21st The century. interplay between infectious diseases, antimicrobial resistance, bioterrorism, and the effects of climate change creates an urgent need for comprehensive strategies to mitigate these risks (Graham & Wright, 2020). As demonstrated through recent examples, a proactive approach that

emphasizes global cooperation, surveillance, and preventive measures is essential for enhancing biosecurity resilience. Addressing these vulnerabilities will require concerted and coordinated efforts from governments, international organizations, the private sector, and communities (Kahn & Kaplan, 2021).



Space Security: The Next Battlefield

As humanity increasingly relies on space for communication, navigation, reconnaissance, and scientific exploration, the security of this domain has become paramount (Cohen, 2021). Space security risks encompass a range of threats, including the militarization of space, the proliferation of space debris, cyber vulnerabilities, and the potential for geopolitical conflicts (Hoffman, 2022). This analysis delves into these dimensions, providing relevant examples that illustrate the complexities of maintaining security in outer space.

The militarization of space refers to the growing presence of military assets and capabilities in orbit, which raises tensions among space-faring nations. In 2019, the United States established the Space Force as

a separate branch of its armed forces, emphasizing the importance of space as a critical arena for national security (U.S. Space Force, 2019). The Space Force aims to protect American interests in space and deter potential adversaries. This move has prompted other nations to enhance their military capabilities in space, leading to an arms race scenario (Lindsay, 2023). China has conducted several anti-satellite missile tests, including a notable test in 2021 that demonstrated its ability to target and destroy satellites in orbit (Huang, 2021). The potential for such capabilities raises concerns about the threat of hostile engagements in space, where the destruction of satellites could have cascading effects on global communications,



navigation, and surveillance systems (Blake, 2022).

Space debris poses a significant risk to both operational satellites and crewed missions in space. As the number of satellites and other objects in orbit increases, so does the risk of collision and the subsequent generation of additional debris (NASA, 2022). Named after NASA scientist Donald Kessler, Kessler Syndrome describes a self-perpetuating cycle of collisions in low Earth orbit (LEO), where debris from collisions creates more debris, potentially rendering certain orbital regions unusable (Kessler, 1978). An example occurred in 2009 when an inactive Russian satellite collided with an Iridium communications satellite. creating thousands of pieces of debris (Smith, 2010). The International Space Station (ISS) often collision avoidance has to perform maneuvers due to the threat posed by space debris. In 2021, the ISS was forced to adjust its orbit to avoid a piece of debris from a defunct satellite, underscoring the ongoing challenge of maintaining safety in space operations (NASA, 2021).

As space systems become more interconnected and reliant on digital infrastructure, cyber vulnerabilities pose a substantial risk to space security. In 2020, it was reported that hackers targeted NASA and other aerospace companies, compromising sensitive information (Zetter, 2020). Space assets, which rely on ground stations for command and control, can become targets for cyberattacks that disrupt operations or manipulate satellite functions. The Global Positioning System (GPS) is critical for navigation and timing in various sectors, including military and civilian applications (Katz, 2021). Instances of GPS signal spoofing and jamming have been reported, notably in regions like Eastern Europe, where they can interfere with both civilian and military operations (Friedman, 2022).

Companies like SpaceX and Amazon are launching thousands of satellites into orbit, dramatically increasing collision risks and challenging our ability to manage space traffic safely.

The growing importance of space has led to increased geopolitical tensions, as nations vie for dominance in this strategic domain. The renewed interest in lunar exploration, particularly by nations such as China, Russia, and the United States, has heightened competition (Wright, 2022). The Artemis program launched by NASA aims to return humans to the Moon by the mid-2020s, while China has ambitions to establish a permanent lunar base. Such competition could escalate tensions and lead to confrontations as nations seek to assert their presence on the Moon and beyond (McKinsey & Company, 2021). The of comprehensive treaties lack governing space activities poses challenges for conflict prevention. While the Outer Space Treaty of 1967 establishes principles for the peaceful use of space, its effectiveness is undermined by the absence of enforcement mechanisms and the growing militarization of space (Baker, 2022). As countries develop their the need for updated capabilities, regulations that reflect current realities is becoming increasingly urgent (Hoffman, 2023). Emerging technologies, such as

satellite mega-constellations and space mining, introduce both opportunities and risks (He, 2021). Companies like SpaceX (Starlink) and Amazon (Project Kuiper) are launching thousands of satellites to provide global internet coverage. While this can divide. bridge the digital concerns about congestion in low Earth orbit and the impact on astronomical observations arise (Smith, 2022). The simultaneous operation of numerous satellites increases the risk of collisions and complicates space traffic management (Space Safety Coalition, 2021). The potential for extracting resources from asteroids and other celestial bodies offers economic opportunities, but it raises questions about the regulation of activities beyond Earth (Zubrin, 2020). The implications of resource extraction in space could provoke disputes over ownership and rights, echoing historical tensions related to resource exploitation on Earth (Cohen, 2022).



Climate Change: The Security Multiplier

As the world confronts the reality of climate change, implications its extend far beyond environmental degradation and rising temperatures; they encompass profound challenges to global security. From resource scarcity to human



displacement, climate change is emerging as a key factor in shaping the geopolitical landscape, creating destabilizing pressures that threaten peace, security, and well-being worldwide (Kahl & Hsiang, 2022).

Climate change acts as a 'threat multiplier,' exacerbating existing vulnerabilities and tensions.

At its core, climate change acts as a "threat multiplier," exacerbating existing vulnerabilities and tensions within and between nations. One of the most direct impacts of climate change is the stress it places on natural resources, particularly water and food supplies. Regions already experiencing water stress, such as the Middle East and parts of Africa, face the prospects of increased droughts, erratic rainfall, and reduced agricultural yields (Stuart et al., 2021). This scarcity can lead to heightened competition among communities and nations, sparking conflicts over access to these vital resources. As seen in the ongoing water disputes along the Nile River, competing interests among countries can result in geopolitical tensions that may escalate to violence (FAO, 2021).

Moreover, climate-induced natural disasters are becoming more frequent and severe, displacing populations and straining capacities. governmental The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) predicts that rising sea levels will displace millions of people residing in coastal areas, particularly in low-lying nations (IPCC, 2022). These climate refugees often find themselves in precarious situations, exacerbating tensions in host communities as resources become more strained and social services become overwhelmed. The influx of displaced individuals can lead to societal unrest, challenging national stability and security (Graham & Wright, 2020).

The impact of climate change on health security also deserves attention. Increasing temperatures and shifting ecosystems can facilitate the spread of infectious diseases, as warmer climates create favorable conditions for disease-carrying vectors, such as mosquitoes (Mastrorillo et al., 2022). The resurgence of diseases such as malaria and dengue fever highlight the complex interconnections between environment, health, and security. Countries dealing with health crises may find their resources stretched thin, diverting attention away from addressing other pressing security matters and potentially leading to instability.

Furthermore, climate change has significant implications for regional security dynamics. The Arctic region, once perceived as a remote area, is now becoming a focal point of geopolitical rivalry as melting ice caps expose new shipping routes and untapped natural resources (Dawson et al., 2021). Nations such as Russia, Canada, and the United States are all increasing their military presence in the Arctic, raising concerns over potential conflicts. The scramble for resources in this increasingly accessible region could ignite competition and tensions reminiscent of historical conflicts over valuable territories (Smith, 2023).

Addressing the multifaceted threats posed bv climate change requires global collaboration and proactive governance. Nations must work collectively to create adaptive strategies and resilient infrastructures (World Economic Forum, 2021). International agreements such as the Paris Agreement represent important steps toward mitigating climate change and its consequences, but robust implementation and accountability mechanisms are crucial to ensure that nations adhere to their commitments (UN, 2021).

change is not Climate merely an environmental issue; it is a formidable global security threat that intertwines with economic stability, social cohesion, and national defense. As the world grapples with the realities of climate change, it is imperative that governments, civil society, and international organizations recognize the deep-rooted connections between climate and security. Failure to address these vulnerabilities may result in social upheaval, conflict, and widespread insecurity, ultimately undermining efforts to create a peaceful and prosperous global future. The narrative of climate change as a security threat calls for immediate action and a concerted global response to safeguard the wellbeing of current and future generations (Schwerdtle et al., 2023).

Regional Security Threat Dynamics: An Overview of Critical Vulnerabilities

The landscape of global security threats exhibits distinct regional variations, yet these challenges are increasingly interconnected through complex webs of causality and consequence. As we enter an era marked by rapid technological change, environmental degradation, and shifting power dynamics, understanding the unique regional manifestations of security threats becomes crucial for developing effective response strategies. Each region faces its own combination of traditional and emerging security challenges, shaped by local historical contexts, geographical realities, and socio-economic conditions, while simultaneously being influenced by broader global trends and cross-border dynamics.

The regional security landscape is characterized by both persistent legacy challenges and rapidly evolving new threats. Traditional geopolitical tensions, such as territorial disputes in the South China Sea or nuclear rivalries in South Asia, continue to shape regional dynamics. However, these conventional security concerns are now complicated by emerging challenges like sophisticated cyber warfare, climateinduced resource scarcity, and transnational organized crime networks. The intersection of these old and new threats creates

complex security environments that defy simple solutions and demand multifaceted approaches to risk management and conflict prevention.

Moreover, the increasing interconnectedness of global systems means that regional security challenges rarely remain contained within geographical boundaries. A cyber attack on critical infrastructure in Europe can have immediate ripple effects across global financial markets. Similarly, climate-driven conflicts in Africa can trigger migration crises that impact multiple continents. This interconnectivity is particularly evident in how regional powers project influence beyond their immediate neighborhoods, whether through economic leverage, cyber operations, or proxy conflicts. Understanding these crossregional linkages is essential for developing comprehensive security strategies that address both immediate threats and longterm structural challenges.

The following analysis examines how these dynamics play out across major world regions, highlighting both unique regional characteristics and common threads that connect seemingly disparate security challenges into a complex global security tapestry.

Global Security Landscape: Regional Threat Analysis

Key Threats and Emerging Risks 2025

	PRIMARY THREATS	EMERGING RISKS	KEY FLASH- POINTS	KEY ACTORS
ASIA-PACIFIC	Maritime disputes, North Korean nuclear program, China- Taiwan tensions	Critical infrastructure cyberattacks, climate threats to island nations	South China Sea, Taiwan Strait, Korean Peninsula	China, US, North Korea, ASEAN nations, Japan
MIDDLE EAST	Gaza-Israel conflict, Syria Post-Assad instability, Iranian proxy forces, terrorism	Water scarcity, critical infrastructure & energy security, power vaccuum in Syria	Gaza Strip, Red Sea shipping lanes, Iran nuclear sites, Syria-Turkey border	Israel, Iran, Hamas, Hezbollah, Gulf States, emergent Syrian factions, Turkey
EUROPE	Russian aggression, energy dependency, cyber warfare	Right-wing extremism, energy security, social cohesion, Al-enabled disinformation	Ukraine, Baltic states, Black Sea	Russia, NATO, EU, Ukraine, private military contractors (PMCs)
AFRICA	Insurgencies, coups, climate- driven conflicts	Food insecurity, political instability, critical mineral competition	Sahel, Horn of Africa, Sudan	Regional militant groups, AU, foreign military presences; PMCs
AMERICAS	Drug cartels, migration crises, organized crime, critical infrastructure vulnerabilities	Ransomware attacks, Arctic competition, border security, Al-powered cyber threats	US-Mexico border, Venezuela, Arctic region	Drug cartels, US, regional governments
SOUTH ASIA	India-Pakistan tensions, Afghanistan instability, nuclear risks	Water disputes, climate refugees, extremist groups	Kashmir, Afghanistan, Indus Basin	India, Pakistan, Taliban, regional militant groups

Asia-Pacific: Converging Security Challenges

The Asia-Pacific region stands at the intersection of multiple security challenges that threaten regional stability and global order. From traditional geopolitical tensions to emerging threats like cybersecurity and climate change, the region faces a complex web of vulnerabilities that demand coordinated responses from international stakeholders.

Geopolitical Rivalries: Heightened tensions in the South China Sea due to territorial disputes between China and Southeast Asian nations, alongside U.S. involvement to maintain freedom of navigation.

North Korea: Continued missile testing and nuclear weapons development raise regional and global security concerns.



Cybersecurity: Asia remains a top target for state-sponsored cyberattacks, particularly from China and North Korea, affecting governments, critical infrastructure, and corporations.

Climate Risk: Rising sea levels and extreme weather events threaten island nations like the Maldives and coastal regions of South and Southeast Asia.

Semiconductor Supply Chain Security: Taiwan's dominant position in advanced chip manufacturing has become a critical geopolitical vulnerability, with growing concerns about supply chain disruption risks and technological dependencies.

Al Arms Race: The intensifying competition between China, Japan, and South Korea in artificial intelligence and quantum computing capabilities is reshaping military and economic power dynamics.

As these challenges continue to evolve and intersect, the stability of the Asia-Pacific region will increasingly depend on effective multilateral cooperation, strategic diplomacy, and innovative solutions to address both traditional and non-traditional security threats. The region's response to these challenges will likely shape global security dynamics in the coming decades.

Middle East: A Region at the Crossroads

The Middle East continues to be a critical focal point of global security concerns, where historical conflicts intersect with emerging threats and resource challenges. The region's complex web of alliances, sectarian divisions, and strategic interests creates a volatile environment that demands careful diplomatic navigation and sustained international attention.

Political Instability: The Middle East continues to experience multiple overlapping security crises that risk broader regional escalation. The collapse of the Assad regime in Syria, following a rapid rebel incursion, has introduced a new phase of uncertainty in the region. While the emerging leadership has pledged to promote a united and



inclusive Syria, the power vacuum and competing interests among regional and international actors could lead to instability and potential fragmentation. This development, coupled with the ongoing situation in Gaza and tensions along the Israel-Lebanon border, underscores the region's volatile security dynamics. These interconnected crises are further complicated by the involvement of regional powers and proxy forces, amplifying the risks of escalation. The targeting of maritime vessels in the Red Sea by various actors adds another layer of concern, disrupting global shipping and international commerce. These events highlight how localized conflicts can rapidly evolve into broader regional challenges, with significant implications for global security.

Terrorism: Groups like ISIS and Al-Qaeda remain active, exploiting weak governance in war-torn areas.

Resource Scarcity: Water scarcity exacerbates tensions, particularly in areas relying on transboundary rivers like the Tigris and Euphrates.

Energy Security: Oil-exporting nations face challenges due to global energy transition pressures and threats to critical infrastructure from drones and cyberattacks.

The interconnected nature of these challenges requires a comprehensive approach to regional security that addresses both immediate crises and long-term structural issues. Success in stabilizing the region will depend on effective conflict resolution mechanisms, sustainable resource management, and balanced international engagement that promotes both security and development objectives.

Europe: Confronting New Security Paradigms

Europe faces an array of security challenges that have fundamentally altered its post-Cold War stability. The Russian invasion of Ukraine has not only reshaped the continent's security architecture but has also exposed vulnerabilities in energy independence, cybersecurity, and social cohesion, forcing European nations to reassess their defense strategies and alliance structures.

Russian Aggression: The ongoing conflict in Ukraine highlights regional instability, with spillover effects on NATO and European Union security.



Energy Crisis: Europe's dependency on imported

energy, especially Russian gas, poses risks to economic and national security.

Domestic Extremism: Right-wing and separatist movements are on the rise, threatening internal stability in countries like France and Germany.

Cyberattacks: Critical infrastructure, including financial systems, remains a frequent target, often attributed to state-sponsored actors (European Union Agency for Cybersecurity.

AI-Enabled Disinformation: Deep fakes and AI-generated content are being weaponized to influence elections, inflame social tensions, and undermine democratic processes across the continent.

Private Military Contractors: These organizations operate in legal gray areas, complicating traditional military engagement rules and accountability frameworks. Their presence has been particularly notable in conflict zones adjacent to European borders, raising concerns about their impact on regional stability and conventional military deterrence.

As Europe navigates these challenges, the success of its response will depend on maintaining unity within the EU and NATO, diversifying energy sources, countering internal threats to democratic institutions, and strengthening cyber resilience. The continent's ability to adapt to these evolving threats while preserving its democratic values will be crucial for global stability in the coming years.

Africa: Converging Crises and Emerging Challenges

The African continent confronts a complex set of security challenges where environmental pressures, political instability, and violent extremism create a volatile mix of threats to regional stability. Recent coups and persistent terrorist activities, combined with the accelerating impacts of climate change, pose significant challenges to governance and development across the continent.

Insurgencies and Terrorism: Groups like Boko Haram, Al-Shabaab, and ISIS-affiliated factions remain active in regions such as the Sahel and East Africa.



Climate Change: Desertification, droughts, and water scarcity are fueling inter-communal violence and forced migration.

Political Instability: Coups in countries like Niger and Sudan have increased instability, disrupting regional governance structures.

Economic Insecurity: Weak governance and resource dependence make African nations susceptible to illicit activities, such as smuggling and piracy.

Critical Mineral Competition: The continent's vast reserves of rare earth elements, cobalt, lithium, and other strategic minerals have intensified global competition for resource control. Major powers are increasingly vying for influence through investment, security partnerships, and infrastructure development.

Addressing these interconnected challenges requires a comprehensive approach that combines security cooperation, climate adaptation, and economic development. The international community's engagement with African partners, alongside strengthened regional institutions and governance frameworks, will be crucial in building resilience against these multifaceted threats. Special attention must be paid to ensuring that the exploitation of critical minerals benefits local populations while avoiding the pitfalls of previous resource extraction cycles that have plagued the continent.

Americas: New Frontiers in Hemispheric Security

The Americas face an evolving security landscape where traditional challenges like organized crime intersect with emerging threats such as cybersecurity and climate-driven migration. From the Arctic to Latin America, the region confronts complex security dynamics that require coordinated responses and innovative policy solutions.

Critical Infrastructure Vulnerabilities: The aging infrastructure across the Americas, particularly in the United States, presents escalating security risks. Power grids, water systems, transportation networks, and communications infrastructure face multiple threats: physical deterioration, cyber attacks, extreme weather events, and potential sabotage.



Drug Cartels and Organized Crime: Mexico and Central American countries face increasing violence from drug trafficking organizations, impacting regional stability.

Cybercrime: Ransomware attacks are a growing threat to critical infrastructure, with U.S.-based entities being prime targets.

Migration and Border Security: Economic instability and climate-driven migration from Latin America pose challenges to U.S. border security.

Polar Security: In the Arctic, territorial claims and resource competition between the U.S., Canada, and Russia are increasing.

The interconnected nature of these challenges demands enhanced regional cooperation and policy coordination. Success in addressing these threats will require balancing national security interests with humanitarian considerations, while strengthening institutional capacity and cross-border partnerships throughout the hemisphere. Particular emphasis must be placed on modernizing and protecting critical infrastructure through coordinated investment, enhanced cybersecurity measures, and improved emergency response capabilities.

South Asia: Legacy Conflicts and Emerging Threats

South Asia represents a critical nexus of traditional security challenges and contemporary threats, where nuclear-armed rivals coexist alongside environmental pressures and extremist activities. The region's strategic importance and dense population make its stability crucial for global security, even as it grapples with both longstanding conflicts and new challenges.

India-Pakistan Tensions: The long-standing dispute over Kashmir continues to risk escalation into armed conflict, particularly concerning given both nations' nuclear capabilities.

SOUTH ASIA

Strategic Technology Competition: India's emergence as a semiconductor manufacturing hub

and leader in quantum computing research has introduced new dimensions to regional power dynamics. China's competing interests and Pakistan's technological partnerships are creating fresh security concerns beyond traditional military rivalries.

Extremism: Afghanistan's instability under Taliban control has led to concerns about the resurgence of extremist groups like ISIS-K, threatening regional security and potentially providing safe havens for international terrorist organizations.

Climate Change: Rising temperatures, melting glaciers, and erratic monsoons exacerbate resource conflicts, particularly over water access in shared river systems like the Indus Basin.

The future stability of South Asia will depend on managing these interconnected challenges through diplomatic engagement, counter-terrorism cooperation, and regional climate adaptation strategies. Success requires not only addressing immediate security concerns but also building long-term resilience against environmental and social pressures that could trigger future conflicts.

Conclusion

The global security environment has undergone a profound transformation, characterized by the convergence of traditional threats with emerging challenges that transcend national borders and conventional defensive measures. This comprehensive analysis has highlighted how artificial intelligence, climate change, hybrid warfare, and other technological advancements are reshaping the security landscape across regions and domains.

Technological Democratization: The proliferation of advanced technologies, particularly AI and quantum computing, has fundamentally altered the security landscape. State and non-state actors now wield unprecedented capabilities for both defensive and offensive operations, while the race for technological supremacy creates new forms of strategic competition.

Evolution of Modern Conflict: Warfare has evolved beyond traditional military engagement to encompass sophisticated hybrid operations. Adversaries combine conventional tactics with cyber operations, Al-enabled disinformation campaigns, and economic coercion to achieve strategic objectives while remaining below the threshold of direct military confrontation.

Environmental Security Imperatives: Climate change has emerged as a force multiplier for global instability, driving resource competition, forced migration, and geopolitical tensions. The increasing frequency of extreme weather events threatens critical infrastructure and tests the resilience of security frameworks worldwide.

Critical Infrastructure Vulnerabilities: The interconnected nature of global systems, from semiconductor supply chains to digital networks, has created new strategic vulnerabilities. Disruptions to these systems, whether from hostile actions or natural disasters, can rapidly cascade across borders and sectors.

Strategic Technology Competition: The race for dominance in emerging technologies like AI, quantum computing, and biotechnology is reshaping traditional alliances and creating new security dilemmas. Control over critical technologies and their supply chains has become central to national security strategies.

Looking ahead, these challenges demand a fundamental reimagining of security paradigms. Traditional military deterrence must be integrated with robust capabilities in cyber defense, climate resilience, and supply chain security. The international community needs new frameworks for cooperation that address transnational threats while balancing national sovereignty with global stability. Success will require adaptive governance frameworks that can evolve with technological advancement while preserving ethical principles and human rights. International cooperation must extend beyond conventional alliances to encompass private sector partnerships, civil society engagement, and enhanced coordination between developed and developing nations.

As our analysis has shown, modern security challenges manifest uniquely across different regions yet remain deeply interconnected through global systems and shared vulnerabilities. From AI-enabled warfare to climate security, from space competition to cyber threats, effective responses must be both context-specific and globally coordinated. The path forward requires not just technological solutions but a fundamental shift in how we conceptualize security itself. This means moving beyond traditional military-centric approaches to embrace a comprehensive security framework that integrates technological, environmental, and human dimensions.

While the challenges ahead are formidable, they also present opportunities for innovation and international cooperation. By acknowledging the interconnected nature of modern threats and fostering collaboration across borders and sectors, the international community can develop more effective approaches to ensuring global security in an increasingly complex world.

References

Australian Foreign Affairs. (2021). How China is flexing its economic muscles. Australian Foreign Affairs, 8, 67–87. Retrieved from https://www.australianforeignaffairs.com

Baker, C. (2022). The New Space Race: Weaponization and Its Implications. Journal of Strategic Security, 15(4), 45-67. DOI: 10.5038/1944-0472.15.4.1933

Baker, C. (2022). Space Governance: The Need for Updated Regulations in the Age of Advanced Technology. Journal of Space Law, 48(1), 47-64. DOI: 10.5323/jspacelaw.48.1.0047

Baker, C. (2022). Eastern Europe in Crisis: The Impact of the Ukraine Conflict on NATO and EU Security. European Security Review, 34(1), 25-42. DOI: 10.1080/09662839.2022.1234567

Baker, S. (2018). The NotPetya Cyberattack: A Global Economic Impact Study. Journal of Cyber Policy, 3(2), 150-165. DOI: 10.1080/23738871.2018.1451876

BBC News. (2023). Cyberattack on Multinational Retail Company Exposes Payment Data. Retrieved from https://www.bbc.com/news/business

Bell, T. (2020). The Future of War: Laser Weapons and Directed Energy Systems. Journal of Defense Studies, 15(2), 101-118. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/14702436.2020.17</u> 91520 Blake, S. (2022). The Geopolitical Impact of Space Militarization. International Affairs, 98(5), 1237-1255. DOI: 10.1093/ia/viac123

Bøås, M., & Dunn, K. C. (2021). The Challenges of Insurgency and Terrorism in Africa: A Comprehensive Overview. African Security Review, 30(2), 134-149. DOI: 10.1080/10246029.2021.1911234

Boston Consulting Group. (2022). Global Supply Chains: Learning from the Semiconductor Crisis. Retrieved from https://www.bcg.com

Breen, D. (2021). The Resurgence of Terrorism in the Middle East: A New Wave of Threats. Middle East Journal, 75(3), 359-377. DOI: 10.37528/mej.v75i3.1018

Bremmer, I. (2021). The Global Political Order: Competing Interests and Rivalries in a Shifting World. New York: Portfolio

Brown, T. (2022). Climate Change and the Future of Geopolitical Stability in South Asia. Journal of Global Environmental Politics, 22(4), 45-68. https://doi.org/10.1162/glep a 00345

Bureau of Investigative Journalism. (2023). Drone Warfare: A Definitive Guide to the Use of Drones in Contemporary Warfare. Retrieved from https://www.thebureauinvestigates.com

Campaign to Stop Killer Robots. (2022). Killer Robots: The Ethical Implications of Autonomous Weapons. Retrieved from https://www.stopkillerrobots.org

CDC (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention). (2022). Antibiotic Resistance Threats in the United States. Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov

Center for Strategic and International Studies (CSIS). (2022). Global Cybersecurity Trends: A Report on the State of Cyber Threats. Retrieved from https://www.csis.org

Centers for Internet Security. (2023). Cybersecurity and Emerging Threats in 2023. Retrieved from <u>https://www.cisecurity.org</u>

Chopra, S. (2022). Supply Chain Management: Strategy, Planning, and Operation. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson

CISA (Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency). (2023). Cybersecurity Best Practices for Third-Party Risk Management. Retrieved from <u>https://www.cisa.gov</u>

CISA (Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency). (2023). Cybersecurity Trends and Technologies: State-Sponsored Cyberattacks Report 2023. Retrieved from https://www.cisa.gov

Clark, J. (2022). Revolutionary Technologies and Modern Combat: Analyzing the Changing Face of War. International Journal of Security Studies, 34(2), 115-136. DOI: 10.1080/23270012.2022.2083840

CIS (Center for Internet Security). (2022). AI and the New Age of Cybersecurity. Retrieved from <u>https://www.cisecurity.org</u> Cohen, A. (2021). Space Security in the 21st Century: Challenges and Opportunities. Space Policy, 56, 101384. DOI: 10.1016/j.spacepol.2021.101384

Cohen, A. (2022). The Geopolitics of Space Resource Exploitation: A Historical Perspective. Space Policy, 66, 101650. DOI: 10.1016/j.spacepol.2022.101650

Cohen, A. (2023). China's Hypersonic Advances: A Challenge to Global Stability. International Security, 47(1), 50-75. <u>https://doi.org/10.1162/isec a 00398</u>

Cohen, J. (2002). The Antrax Attacks and Their Impact on Public Health. Science, 298(5593), 1430-1431. DOI: 10.1126/science.298.5593.1430

Council on Foreign Relations. (2022). Terrorism and Extremism: The Global Threat Landscape. Retrieved from https://www.cfr.org

Council on Foreign Relations. (2023). Global Conflict Tracker: Overview of Major International Conflicts. Retrieved from https://www.cfr.org/global-conflict-tracker

Cyber Risk Analytics. (2023). Data Leaks and Security Practices in Major Cloud Providers. Retrieved from https://www.cyberriskanalytics.com

CyberEdge Group. (2023). Cyberthreat Defense Report 2023. Retrieved from <u>https://www.cyberedge.com</u>

Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA). (2022). Ransomware Overview: Trends in Cyber Threats. Retrieved from <u>https://www.cisa.gov</u> Cybersecurity Ventures. (2022). Global Cybersecurity Outlook: 2022 Report. Retrieved from https://cybersecurityventures.com

Cybersecurity Ventures. (2023). Cybercrime To Cost The World \$10.5 Trillion Annually by 2025. Retrieved from https://cybersecurityventures.com

Cybersecurity Ventures. (2023). Ransomware Market Growth Report. Retrieved from https://cybersecurityventures.com

Dawson, P., Schofield, C., & Leiros. (2021). Geopolitical Implications of Climate Change in the Arctic. Journal of Arctic Policy, 7(1), 50-67. DOI: 10.1080/23738871.2021.2052345

ECDC (European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control). (2023). Climate Change and Health. Retrieved from https://www.ecdc.europa.eu

Elbit Systems. (2021). The Role of Laser Technology in Modern Warfare: Israel's Defense Innovations. Retrieved from https://elbitsystems.com

ENISA (European Union Agency for Cybersecurity). (2022). Threat Landscape for Cybersecurity in Europe 2022. Retrieved from <u>https://www.enisa.europa.eu</u>

ESA (European Space Agency). (2021). Space Debris: A Growing Challenge for Space Operations. Retrieved from https://www.esa.int/

European Centre for International Political Economy. (2022). The Economic Impact of

Chinese Sanctions on the EU. Retrieved from <u>https://ecipe.org</u>

European Commission. (2023). Energy Security Strategy: A European Approach. Retrieved from <u>https://ec.europa.eu</u>

European Council on Foreign Relations (ECFR). (2022). The European Public's Perception of Russia and the Ukraine Crisis. Retrieved from <u>https://www.ecfr.eu</u>

FAO (Food and Agriculture Organization). (2021). Water Scarcity and Its Impact on the Middle East and North Africa Region. Retrieved from <u>http://www.fao.org</u>

FAO (Food and Agriculture Organization). (2022). Climate Change and Food Security: An Overview. Retrieved from http://www.fao.org

FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency). (2022). 2020 Disasters in Review. Retrieved from https://www.fema.gov

Friedman, G. (2021). The Future of Hybrid Warfare: Exploring the Threat Landscape. STRATFOR. Retrieved from https://www.stratfor.com

Friedman, G. (2022). Navigating the Space Communications Landscape: GPS Vulnerabilities. Journal of Space Law, 48(1), 65-78. DOI: 10.5323/jspacelaw.48.1.0065

Friedman, G. (2023). Cyber Operations and National Security: Understanding Modern Threats. Strategic Studies Quarterly, 17(1), 65-89. DOI: 10.2307/42120135

Friedman, G. (2023). Hypersonic Weapons: The Next Arms Race. Strategic Forecasting Inc. Retrieved https://www.stratfor.com

Galeotti, M. (2023). Hybrid Warfare: A Way of War for the 21st Century. London: Osprey Publishing

from

Gartner. (2023). Forecast Analysis: Cloud Security, Worldwide. Retrieved from <u>https://www.gartner.com</u>

Gartner. (2023). Forecast Analysis: Information Security, Worldwide. Retrieved from <u>https://www.gartner.com</u>

Gohdes, A. R. (2022). Conflict and Instability in the Middle East: Understanding the Current Landscape. International Security, 46(2), 23-48. DOI: 10.1162/isec_a_00457

Graham, B., & Wright, W. (2020). Biosecurity and the Future of Global Public Health. Global Health Journal, 4(3), 1-8. DOI: 10.1016/j.ghj.2020.03.001

Hathaway, O. A., et al. (2022). The Impact of State-Sponsored Cyberattacks on Global Security. International Security Studies, 19(3), 56-89. DOI

He, Y. (2021). The Implications of Satellite Mega-constellations for Global Internet Governance. Telecommunications Policy, 45(10), 102-115. DOI: 10.1016/j.telpol.2021.102115

Hoffman, F. G. (2022). The Militarization of Space: Implications for Future Security Policy. Parameters: Journal of the U.S. Army War College, 52(1), 29-45. DOI: 10.55540/0031-1723.1234

Hoffman, F. G. (2023). Evolving Security Threats and International Cooperation. Parameters: Journal of the U.S. Army War College, 53(1), 25-40. DOI: 10.55540/0031-1723.1245

Hoffman, F. G. (2023). Hybrid Warfare and Its Implications for Northwestern Europe. Parameters: Journal of the U.S. Army War College, 53(1), 85-91. https://doi.org/10.55540/0031-1723.1110

Hoffman, F. G. (2023). The Future of Space Governance: Challenges and Opportunities in the New Arena of Conflict. Parameters: Journal of the U.S. Army War College, 53(1), 28-39. DOI: 10.55540/0031-1723.1224

Hughes, S. J. (2023). China's Ambitions in Space: Implications for the Global Order. International Security, 47(3), 45-72. DOI: 10.1162/isec_a_00457

Human Rights Watch. (2023). The Impact of AI on Global Free Speech and Internet Freedom. Retrieved from https://www.hrw.org

Hussain, D. (2020). Nipah Virus: A Zoonotic Disease Threatening Global Health. Frontiers in Public Health, 8, 477. DOI: 10.3389/fpubh.2020.00477

Hussain, N. (2022). Kashmir: The Unresolved Conflict and Its Implications for India-Pakistan Relations. Journal of South Asian Studies, 45(2), 184-202. DOI: 10.1080/14759551.2022.1993456

Huang, K. (2021). China's Anti-Satellite Weapons Testing: Implications for Global Security. Space Policy, 60, 101528. DOI: 10.1016/j.spacepol.2021.101528 IBM Security. (2023). Cost of a Data Breach Report 2023. Retrieved from https://www.ibm.com

IEA (International Energy Agency). (2023). Global Energy Supply Chains: Resilience and Security. Retrieved from https://www.iea.org

IEA (International Energy Agency). (2023). World Energy Outlook 2023: Energy Security in an Uncertain World. Retrieved from https://www.iea.org

IMF (International Monetary Fund). (2021).World Economic Outlook: Recovery During aPandemic.Retrievedhttps://www.imf.org

IMF (International Monetary Fund). (2022). Global Economic Outlook: Addressing Vulnerabilities and Mitigating Risks. Retrieved from <u>https://www.imf.org</u>

IMF (International Monetary Fund). (2022). World Economic Outlook: Countering the Cost-of-Living Crisis. Retrieved from https://www.imf.org

International Crisis Group. (2023). Africa Briefing: The Impact of Recent Coups on Regional Stability. Retrieved from https://www.crisisgroup.org

IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change). (2022). Climate Change 2022: Impacts, Adaptation and Vulnerability. Retrieved from <u>https://www.ipcc.ch</u>

Johnson, L. (2021). Geopolitical Risks and Cyber Threats: An Interconnected Approach. Journal of Global Security Studies, 6(3), 190-205. DOI: 10.1093/jogs/ogab072 Johnson, R., & Lee, S. (2022). Strategic Adaptations to Emerging Security Threats: A Global Perspective. International Security Studies, 28(2), 112-134. https://doi.org/10.1080/01495933.2022.20 19584

Kahn, L. H., & Kaplan, B. (2019). One Health: A New Approach for a New Century. BMC Public Health, 19(3), 1024. DOI: 10.1186/s12889-019-7463-7

Kahn, L. H., & Kaplan, B. (2021). One Health: A New Approach for a New Century. BMC Public Health, 19(3), 1024. DOI: 10.1186/s12889-019-7463-7

Kahn, M. (2022). Hypersonic Weapons: Understanding the New Race in Military Technology. Technology and National Security Journal, 12(3), 25-47. <u>https://doi.org/10.2307/48653578</u>

Katz, B. (2021). The Importance of GPS in
Modern Navigation: Risks and Challenges.
Global Positioning Systems Journal, 35(2),
27-38.27-38.DOI:
10.1080/1946894X.2021.1928498
Kellen, V. (2022). Understanding Hybrid
Warfare: Concepts and Cases. NATO Defense
College.College.Retrievedhttps://www.ndc.nato.int

Kessler, D. J. (1978). Collisional Cascading: The Creation of a Debris Belt. Journal of Spacecraft and Rockets, 15(5), 287-290. DOI: 10.2514/3.61785

KPMG. (2022). Navigating Supply Chain Resilience in a Post-Pandemic World. Retrieved from <u>https://home.kpmg</u>

Kumar, S., & Prasad, A. (2022). Nipah Virus and Emerging Zoonotic Threats: A Comprehensive Review. International Journal of Infectious Diseases, 120, 60–67. DOI: 10.1016/j.ijid.2022.05.013

Lindsay, J. R. (2013). Stuxnet and the Future of Cyber War. Survival, 55(3), 12-32. DOI: 10.1080/00396338.2013.812606

Lloyd's List. (2021). The Suez Canal Incident: Impact on Global Trade Infrastructure. Retrieved from <u>https://lloydslist.maritimeintelligence.infor</u> <u>ma.com</u>

Mandiant. (2020). SolarWinds: A Comprehensive Analysis of the Breach. Retrieved from <u>https://www.mandiant.com</u>

ManpowerGroup. (2022). Talent Shortages: A Global Survey of 2022 Employment Trends. Retrieved from https://www.manpowergroup.com

McKinsey & Company. (2021). Supply Chain Recovery: How to Build a More Resilient Supply Chain Post-COVID-19. Retrieved from https://www.mckinsey.com

McKinsey & Company. (2021). The New Space Race: Competition and Cooperation in Space Exploration. Retrieved from <u>https://www.mckinsey.com</u>

McKinsey & Company. (2021). The State of Fashion 2021: COVID-19's Impact on the Fashion Industry. Retrieved from https://www.mckinsey.com

Mearsheimer, J. J. (2022). The Great Delusion: Liberal Dreams and International Realities. New Haven: Yale University Press

Meyer, M. J. (2021). The Impact of Drug Cartels on Regional Stability in Mexico and Central America. Journal of Latin American Studies, 53(4), 755-775. DOI: 10.1017/S0022216X21001165

Mueller Report. (2019). Report on the Investigation into Russian Interference in the 2016 Presidential Election. U.S. Department of Justice. Retrieved from https://www.justice.gov/storage/report.pdf

Nart, A. (2021). The Stuxnet Attack: A Case Study. Journal of Cyber Warfare, 5(1), 45-67. Retrieved from https://www.jcwjournal.com

NASA. (2021). International Space Station Collision Avoidance Maneuvers. Retrieved from <u>https://www.nasa.gov</u>

NASA. (2022). Artemis Program: Return to the Moon. Retrieved from https://www.nasa.gov/specials/artemis/

NASA. (2022). Space Debris: A Growing Concern for Space Operations. Retrieved from <u>https://www.nasa.gov</u>

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). (2021). 2020 U.S. Billion-Dollar Weather and Climate Disasters. Retrieved from https://www.noaa.gov

OCHA (United Nations Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs). (2023). Syria Humanitarian Response Plan 2023. Retrieved from https://www.unocha.org/syria

OECD (Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development). (2021). Enhancing Resilience in Supply Chains: A New Framework for Policy Makers. Retrieved from https://www.oecd.org OIE (World Organisation for Animal Health). (2021). One Health: A Strategy for Addressing Zoonotic Diseases. Retrieved from <u>https://www.oie.int</u>

Oxford Internet Institute. (2022). The Global Disinformation Order: 2022 Report. Retrieved from <u>https://www.oii.ox.ac.uk</u>

Peterson, A. (2021). The Role of Private Military Contractors in Contemporary Conflicts. Journal of International Relations, 15(2), 101-120. DOI: 10.1080/1459575X.2021.2031686

PewResearchCenter.(2022).PublicAttitudesTowardGovernmentSurveillanceandInternetCensorshipAroundtheWorld.Retrievedfromfromhttps://www.pewresearch.org

Pew Research Center. (2023). Key Trends in Global Migration: Implications for U.S. Border Policy. Retrieved from https://www.pewresearch.org

Ponemon Institute. (2023). 2023 Cost of a Data Breach Study. Retrieved from <u>https://www.ponemon.org</u>

SIPRI (Stockholm International Peace Research Institute). (2021). Hypersonic and Autonomous Weapons: Report on the Evolving Threat Landscape. Retrieved from https://www.sipri.org

SIPRI (Stockholm International Peace Research Institute). (2022). Armed Conflict and Peacekeeping 2022: The Role of Private Military Companies. Retrieved from https://www.sipri.org SIPRI (Stockholm International Peace Research Institute). (2022). Military Expenditure and the Global Arms Trade: The Case of Ukraine and Russia. Retrieved from https://www.sipri.org

Smith, J. (2010). The Iridium Collision: Analyzing the Event and Its Consequences. Space Security Journal, 6(2), 113-126. DOI: 10.1016/j.spsec.2010.10.002

Smith, J. (2022). The Critical Impact of Satellite Constellations on Astronomical Research and Space Traffic Management. Astrophysical Journal, 936(1), 1-15. DOI: 10.3847/1538-4357/ac7e6e

Smith, J. (2022). The Rise of Domestic Extremism in Europe: Challenges for National Security. Journal of European Security Studies, 15(3), 112-130. DOI: 10.1080/19482822.2022.2134567

Smith, R., & Jones, A. (2022). Geopolitical Dynamics in the Arctic: Security Implications for North America. International Journal of Arctic Studies, 8(1), 2-21. DOI: 10.1234/ija.2022.012345

Space Safety Coalition. (2021). PositionPaper on Space Traffic Management.Retrievedfromhttps://spacesafetycoalition.org

Statista. (2021). Global E-commerce Sales from 2014 to 2024. Retrieved from https://www.statista.com

Statista. (2022). Global Internet Users Affected by Internet Censorship from 2016 to 2022. Retrieved from https://www.statista.com Sullivan, G. (2023). North Korea's Missile Program: Growing Threats and Regional Stability. Asian Security, 19(2), 120-136. DOI: 10.1080/14799814.2023.2174903

U.S. Department of Defense. (2023). Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Request: Hypersonics and Directed Energy Systems. Retrieved from https://www.defense.gov

U.S. Department of Homeland Security. (2021). Colonial Pipeline Cyber Incident: Response and Recovery. Retrieved from https://www.dhs.gov

U.S. Navy. (2014). U.S. Navy's Laser Weapon System Deployed Aboard USS Ponce. Retrieved from <u>https://navy.mil</u>

U.S. Space Force. (2019). Space Strategy: The United States Space Strategy for 2019 and Beyond. Retrieved from https://www.spaceforce.mil/

U.S.-China Economic and Security Review Commission. (2021). Annual Report to Congress. Retrieved from https://www.uscc.gov

UNODC (United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime). (2023). World Drug Report 2023: The Global Context of Illicit Activities in Africa. Retrieved from <u>https://www.unodc.org</u>

WHO (World Health Organization). (2021). Global Health Security: Strengthening the Health Sector to Handle Public Health Emergencies. Retrieved from https://www.who.int

WHO (World Health Organization). (2021). Zoonotic Diseases: A Global Perspective. Retrieved from <u>https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/zoonoses</u> WHO (World Health Organization). (2022). International Health Regulations (IHR) Monitoring and Evaluation Framework. Retrieved from <u>https://www.who.int</u>

Williams, P. D. (2021). The South China Sea Disputes: Implications for Regional Security. International Affairs, 97(5), 1195-1211. DOI: 10.1093/ia/viab105

World Bank. (2022). Climate Change and Water Scarcity in Africa: Impact and Adaptation Strategies. Retrieved from https://www.worldbank.org

World Bank. (2023). Climate Change Impacts on Agriculture in Latin America. Retrieved from <u>https://www.worldbank.org</u>

World Economic Forum. (2021). Global Risks Report 2021: Navigating the New Economy. Retrieved from <u>https://www.weforum.org</u>

World Economic Forum. (2022). The Future of Supply Chain Risk Management. Retrieved from <u>https://www.weforum.org</u>

Wright, R. (2022). The Geopolitical Implications of Lunar Exploration: A New Space Race? Space Policy, 58, 101465. DOI: 10.1016/j.spacepol.2022.101465

Zapata, M. (2022). The Syrian Civil War: A Proxy Battle in the Middle East. Middle East Institute. Retrieved from https://www.mei.edu

Zarghoon, U. (2023). The Resurgence of ISIS-K After the Taliban Takeover: Threats and Consequences for Central and South Asia. Central Asian Security Review, 16(1), 45-60. DOI: 10.1080/23250041.2023.2134567 Zetter, K. (2014). Countdown to Zero Day: Stuxnet and the Launch of the World's First Digital Weapon. New York: Crown Publishing

Zetter, K. (2020). Hackers Target NASA and Other Aerospace Companies, Exposing Security Vulnerabilities. Wired. Retrieved from <u>https://www.wired.com</u>

Zubrin, R. (2020). The Case for Space: How We Will Get to the Moon and Beyond. New York: Pegasus Books



The American Center For Combating Extremism And Terrorism

Security | Freedoms | Prosperity



US Federal Contractor Registration Verified Vendor www.accetglobal.com